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Corporate Profile 
K mart Corporation is the worlds best-known discount retailer ,„h 

operator of specialty stores. Managements objective is to ,,r„J 3 ma)or 

value to both the company’s customers and shareholders. !’Upenor 

As of January 31.1990, the company was comprised of two separate 

business groups and important equity mteiests as shown in the foiw^, tab|e. 

Company__Description of Business 

General-Merchandise Group 

k mart Discount department stores 
FACE Membership Warehouse Membership warehouse clubs 

Specialty Retail Group 

Builders Square 

Fay Less Drug Stores 

Waldenbooks 

Bargain Harold s 

Warehouse home improvement stores 
Super drug stores 

Retail book stores 

Limited-line deep-discount stores 
in Canada 

Meldisco subsidiaries of 
Melville Corporation 

Coles Myer Ltd. 

Equity Interests 

Footwear retailer 

Largest retail company in Australia 
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The new K mart-bigger, brighter, better at meeting customer needs. This new 
store format is one of our six key strategies for growth in the ’90s. Our story 
begins on page 6. 

Financial Highlights 

($ Millions, except 
per-share data) 

Sales 

% * % 
1989 Change 1988 Change 

$29,533 8.2 $27,301 6.5 

715 (7.2) $ 803 16.0 

Net Earnings Before 

Restructuring Charge $ 

Net Income $ 

Per Common Share: 

Net Earnings Before 

Restructuring Charge $ 

Net Income $ 

Cash Dividends 

Declared $ 

Return on Beginning Assets 

Return on Beginning 

Investment 

Return on Beginning 

Shareholders’ Equity 

General Merchandise Stores 

Specialty Retail Stores 

323 (59.8) $ 803 16.0 

3.71 (7.2) $ 4.00 17.6 

1.61 (59.8) 
$ 

4.00 17.6 

1.64 24.2 $ 1.32 13.8 

2.7%* 7.2 % 

6.8% * 13.6% 

6.4% * 18.2% 

2,408 2,307 

1,851 1,775 

1987 

$25,627 

$ 692 

$ 692 

UNIVERSITY 

0 7 1990 

KRANNERT LIBRARY 

12.3% 

17.6% 

2,273 

1,661 

$ 3if™DUE 

* Excluding the restructuring charge, the return on beginning assets, investment and shareholders’ equity was 6. lr,. 
11.8^ and 14.9*£, respectively. 

(Billions) 
$30 2.500 

SALES STORES OPEN AT 
EM) OF YEAR 
BY BUSINESS GROUP 

il 
GKNKRAl MhKClIWDIsh 
STORES 

MM Cl\m RET Ml STORES 
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To Our 
Shareholders 

In 1989, net earnings were $745 million, or $3.71 per share, exclu¬ 

sive of a pretax provision of $640 million the company established to 
coverall expenses associated with an expanded and accelerated 

K mart store opening, enlargement, relocation and refurbishment 
program and other non-recurring charges. That represented a 1.2% 

decline from the prior year’s earnings of $803 million, or $4.00 per' 

share. After the provision, earnings in 1989 were $323 million, or 

$1.61 per share. Total sales increased 8.2% to $29.53 billion for the 

53-week year ended January 31,1990, compared with total sales of 
$27.30 billion for the 52-week year ended January 25, 1989. 

Exclusive of the provision to cover all expenses associated with 

the store modernization program and other non-recurring charges 

earnings for the fourth quarter of 1989 were $396 million, or $1.97 

per share, compared with 1988 earnings of $393 million, or $1.96 

per share. After the provision, a loss of $20 million, or $0.10 per 

share, was sustained in the fourth quarter of 1989. Total sales for 

the 14-week fourth quarter were $9.75 billion, an increase of 15.9% 
trom the $8.42 billion in the 13-week fourth quarter of 1988. 

The 1989 year was the 25th consecutive year in which dividends 

declared were increased. The Board of Directors increased the declared 
dividend 24.2% in April 1989 to an annual rate of $1.64 per share. 

1 he 1989 year was a turning point for our company, as we deci¬ 

sively addressed two key strategies of K mart Corporation. Several 

thousand prices were reduced to maintain our price leadership 

across America. In addition, a number of our stores were expanded, 

relocated or refurbished to maintain our dominance in the market¬ 
place. Both programs proved to be extremely successful. 

, Jlth'?,h,ighly competitive world of retailing today, it is absolutely 

nroHn . f f We Prov^e our customers with good value-quality 

this ic th 3 °VV pnces' ^ mart has been doing this for 28 years, and 

consumer tr,aS°n ,Ve are ^nown as the store that offers the American 

Dlaced ^ qUa lty needed at ever-vdaylow Prices. In 1989, we 
erine of nr!1 gre,?ter emPhasis on our pricing leadership, but the low- 

1989 eamin ^a U? mar^ns’ and this contributed importantly to our 
prices inrrJT lne; However> unit turnover of items with lowered 

program will^ - ^1^I|^lcantly* and we are confident that this pricing 

will have a ml? C- • mart to ma*ntain its pricing leadership which 
>s positive impact on our business in the years ahead. 

emization program Sr?ategy ^ a more aggressive K mart store mod- 
unng the past 18 months, we developed the 

framework of a store opening, enlargement and relocation program 
that will result in K mart operating more than 2,500 full-size retail 
stores in the United States by the end of 1995. In February 1990. we 

announced a five-year, $2.3 billion new store opening, enlargement, 
relocation and refurbishment program, which represents an accel¬ 
eration of the previous $1.3 billion program, and the establishment 
of a $640 million provision to cover all expenses associated with the 
store modernization program and other non-recurring charges. 

This program will involve virtually all U.S. K mart discount stores. 
There will be approximately 250 new full-size K mart stores, 620 

enlargements, 280 relocations and 30 closings. In addition, approxi¬ 
mately 1,260 stores will be refurbished to bring their layout and fix- 

turing up to new store standards. Plans now call for completion of the 
store enlargements and relocations by 1993 and remaining refurbish- 
ments by 1994. As part of this program, we have already opened sev¬ 
eral prototype stores and, in the last two years, have enlarged and 

relocated 83 stores and 35 stores, respectively. In the enlarged, relo¬ 
cated and prototype stores, customer acceptance of the layouts, 
fixturing and new merchandise assortments has been very good, 

and sales results have exceeded expectations. As a result, we have 

determined that we must move forward with this program more 

quickly, including updating the look of all our stores. By doing so. we 

will improve the shopping environment for our customers and clearly 

show the excellent quality of our merchandise through an improved 

presentation. The fine quality of the branded merchandise we carry 

will become more evident in a more modern store environment. This 

program is the best investment 

we can make in our core dis- 

in 

^H 
mu \ 
iKimivt "I iv!.ik.•.aim:],in..ii 

Joseph E. Antonini 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer 
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programs. In-store installations are nearing completion in two very 
important high-technology programs. At 1989 year end, Point-of-Sale 
systems were installed in 1,739 stores, and we expect to have P()S 
installed in all K mart stores by October 1990. Our POS system cap¬ 
tures detailed sales information, enabling buyers to quickly assess 
developing trends and buying patterns, which in turn results in an 
improved merchandise mix and greater customer satisfaction and 
service. And by early next year, we will have completed the installa¬ 
tion of the K mart satellite network serving the needs of our stores 
distribution centers, regional offices and corporate headquarters. At 
the end of 1989.1,481 stores were on-line. Substantial benefits are 
already being realized, such as reduced data transmission costs, lower 
customer credit handling expense and improved communications 
from headquarters personnel to store management through weekly 
live video transmissions. These weekly telecasts have been enthusi¬ 
astically received by our field personnel. 

With the information available from our POS system, we are 
rapidly proceeding towards centralized merchandising and auto¬ 
mated replenishment. All apparel departments and footwear have 
been centralized tor some time. During the past two years, we have 
centralized hosiery, infants basics, small appliances, home electron¬ 
ics, cameras and jewelry. At the start of 1990, four more depart¬ 
ments were added-curtains and drapes, floor coverings, automotive 
and a large part of major appliances. Even for non-centralized depart¬ 
ments. \\e ait* assigning most advertised and seasonal merchandise 
centrally Iaken collectively, by the end of 1990, as much as 70% to 

c a mer<-handise sold in U.S. K mart stores will be centrally 
merchandised. We plan to centralize bed and bath products in 1991, 

'V1 Proc^ed further in this centralization process over the 

HrrLi,^ 'Vfar\ s'stem tracks merchandise sales and facilitates 
JSP^Shn?ent’ keePin^ our stores stocked with the most 

centralizedTOrcfendising1116 CUSt°mer Wh° benefitS mHStfmm 

the^mn^nlnlied t(?l00k at retailins formats in 1989 that will enable 
we will LJt0 PICk UP addltlonal market share in the 1990s. While 
division rptlTk an a^ress*ve expansion of our core discount store 
characteristic uslnesses wkh high-volume, low-cost and low-price 
K mart. PACF M* Pk°V1J add*tional growth opportunities for 
of 47 warehouse* ^ erstllP Warehouse, Inc., an operator of a chain 

November 19X9 C) SJS,SUC^ a comPany> which K mart acquired in 
ember 1989. 0ur Makro division will be consolidated into PACE 

in the first half of 1990. We think the warehouse club business will be 
a growth segment of retailing in the years ahead, and we are well 
positioned to participate in that growth. 

Another high-volume, low-cost, low-price format is the ware¬ 
house sporting goods business which we entered in 1989 with the 
opening of two Sports Giant stores in the Detroit metropolitan area. 
In March 1990, the company acquired The Sports Authority, Inc., an 
operator of a chain of eight large-format sporting goods stores, with 
at least 10 additional stores scheduled for 1990 openings. Operations 
of Sports Giant w ill be combined with The Sports Authority later 
this year. By year end, The Sports Authority division will be operat¬ 
ing about 20 stores, with another 10 to 15 scheduled to open each 
year over the next five years. 

Two other businesses are still in the early stages of development. 
In 1988, K mart introduced Office Square, a new venture in the rapidly 
growing warehouse office supply business. There are now four 
stores. We will be opening our second American Fare food general 
merchandise store in Charlotte, North Carolina in April 1990. American 
Fare is a 51%-owned hypermarket joint venture with Brunos, Inc. 

Our established specialty store businesses for the most part had 
excellent results in 1989. Particularly encouraging was the progress 
made at Builders Square, our warehouse home improvement center 
operation. Emphasis shifted from the rapid opening of new units to 
improving the merchandise mix and increasing the gross margin. As 
a consequence, operating results were greatly improved in 1989, and 
we anticipate continued rapid earnings growth in the years ahead. 

Waldenbooks, the largest operator of retail book stores in the 
United States, and Pay Less Drug Stores, which operates super 
drug stores in nine western states, are both well-operated and 
profitable companies with excellent growth prospects. 

The 1989 year was a challenging period for K mart. We elected to 
move ahead faster than originally planned on two very key long-term 
strategies-clearly establishing a pricing leadership in the market¬ 
place and setting in motion a program to modernize our K mart 
store base. These strategies, along with our other business strat¬ 
egies for the 1990s, will result in improved financial returns and 
superior investment returns for our shareholders. 

Joseph E. Antonini 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer 

March 20,1990 
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The leader that shaped discounting’s past 
defines its future. 

America’s discount business really began with the opening of the first K mart 

store 28 years ago. Since then. K mart has shaped the industry with its 

consistent emphasis on price, value, recognizable brands, and by offering 

customers what they want, when they want it. 

In the ’90s, K mart will continue as America’s most dominant retail name¬ 

plate by remaining the leader in everyday low prices and by implementing 

strategies designed for real gains in sales, earnings, cash flow. These 

strategies include, accelerated store expansion and refurbishing, capitalizing 

on our dominant lifestyle departments, centralized merchandising, more 

capital investment in retail automation, an aggressive and focused advertising 

program, and continued growth through new specialty retail formats. 

K mart’s past strategies form the basis for the way much of discount 

retailing operates today. Its strategies for the ’90s, along with increased 

emphasis on price, are bound to challenge competitors and help define what for theV 90s 

discounting becomes. 

K mart stores are bigger, easier to shop, better at meeting customer needs. 

The K mart discount store of the ’90s has been built and an accelerated 

program to build many more is underway. Our new K mart is larger, more 

conveniently laid out, with more of the merchandise American consumers 

want to buy. 

And for the first time since the 1970s, we plan to build 250 of these new, 

full-size K marts over the next five years. By 1995, our number of stores will 

have grown from 2,194 today, to 2,500, with stores averaging 85,000 square 

feet or more. 

K mart plans to open 250 
new stores over next five 
years. 

Our modernization program, the most ambitious we’ve undertaken, will 

involve virtually every K mart in America. We will enlarge about 620 existing 

stores, relocate 280 more and close 30 K marts. And about 1,260 stores will 

be refurbished to bring store layouts and fixturing up to our new standards. 

We expect to complete store enlargements and relocations by 1993, our ret'ur- 

bishments by 1994. 

Our entire expansion program will add as much as 35 million square feet 

of retail space to our chain at a cost of $2.3 billion in capital expenditures over 

a five-year period. 

From what we know about our new, larger-format stores, we’re convinced 

our investment is timely. 

K mart undertakes its most 
ambitious modernization 
program ever. 

The company will add as 
much as 35 million square 
feet of retail space at a cost 
of S2.3 billion. 
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Customers like new 
store format. 

K mart develops key 
ifestyle departments into 
businesses" with 

category dominance. 

Shoppers like the new store format-the wide aisles, bright colors, 

fixtures that showcase our lifestyle departments. And because all automation 

systems are installed and tracking merchandise, customers find more of 
the goods they want more often. 

Bigger, easier to shop, better meeting the customers' needs-that’s the 

K mart store of the 90s and one of our most important strategies for main¬ 
taining our discount leadership this decade and beyond. 

K mart creates dominant lifestyle departments to meet 
America s chan^in^ lifestvles. 

, Americans litest\ les and shopping habits began to change, K mart 

u n !fV lT' ^ We recast our ^ard £()ods buying departments into six, 
?rr m^Chandise divisions- This paved the way for the creation of 

dominant hfestyle departments-departments that could be developed as 
businesses with category dominance. 

merchanHic r Create dePartments so strong in depth and assortment of 

Our denartm a^Ustomers u sh°P K mart first for those particular goods. 

Home Care c” )US'"eSSes include Kitchen Korner, Bed and Bath Shop, 

Apparel and Font^’ H°r*,CU,tUre> SP(,rtinK Goods and Auto Accessories, 

“cl T ^ H°me Entertainment and Leisure. 

assure growth over thT °Veral1 d'V‘sion aPPr°ach, we want programs that 
e ong term. So we’ve developed programs to integrate 

1 nu,t 0.^,ratlon ,989 Ann[^| r^. 

merchandise, advertising and promotion-programs we believe get results. 
Our I tome Fashions and Martha Stewart program is a good example. 

Martha Stewart is our vehicle for getting the word to the customer: 

K mart has the merchandise you want to enhance your home, from dinner- 

ware to do-it-yourself supplies. And the success of Martha Stewart has 

prompted K mart to i reate a separate and seventh division to manage strat¬ 
egy for all Martha Stewart label goods. 

1 hrough oui division changes, we haven t forgotten the consumables and 

convenience products which have made us Americas leading discounter. We 

will continue to aggressively promote these image items our customers have 

been buying since K mart opened. But our strategies for the '90s will also 

include capitalizing on our dominant lifestyle departments. Growing 

“businesses" that will mean business for K mart for years to come. 

Centralized merchandising gets customers the merchandise 
they want when they want it. 

Centralized merchandising is a computerized, highly automated replen¬ 
ishment system. It tracks how quickly merchandise sells and, just as 
quickly, puts popular items back on 

the shelves. Kivpiiuo’iir well 

has been one of K mart’s basic 

strategies. And centralized merchan- 

dising enhances that strategy. 

making us more competitive . r'r"v’r 

in the ’90s. 

From apparel to infant hard- ^ 

lines to small appliances, we’ve 

already put many departments on 

centralized merchandising. In the \V 

future, key lifestyle depart- 

ments like Sporting Goods and 1 k 

Auto Accessories will be on line. ” I 
By the end of 1990, as much as 70 

percent to 75 percent of our ^ 

merchandise will be centrally 

merchandised. 

We’ve found centralized merchandising is more efficient so we can pass 

price savings on to the customer. On advertised and seasonal goods, the 

system improves our ability to keep merchandise in stock and helps us do a 
better job of balancing inventory. 

/ 

Martha Stewart becomes 
7th merchandise division. 

By the end of 1990. 70 
percent to 75 percent of 
merchandise will be cen¬ 
trally merchandised. 

J 

Centralized merchandising 
means savings passed on to 
the customer, with better 
in-stocks and balanced 
inventories. 
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Satellite makes for 
better management. 

By October 1990, all stores 
"'"^'POS check-outs 
speeding up response 
to customer. 

a 1"u the lCUSt°mer Wh° benefits most from centralized merchandising. 
And that is the best reason to make the system part of our basic '90s strategies. 

K mart advances with an advanced POS/Satellite System. 

satemrr' {aT C0mmUniCati0n is one of our goals for the ’90s. And our 
achieve it^ ' *^ P°mt'of'Sale (P0S) scanning system will help us 

headauartprc re^U*ar’ bve sateb'te v>deo communication from K mart 

regular satellit° ^ than 2,200 Stores wil1 be a matter of course. Today, 
ment a2?^^ live broad-sts from senior manage-' 

diate response T*", ‘f* “ to Ca"in »d receive an imme- 

burning ,0 instantcredit ^rTzata MniS'nl'm fr<’m baSk 

KmartCorp,)ratlon|989Annua| 
Report 

Complementing the satellite technology is our POS scanning system 

All stores will have POS scanning check-outs by October 1990. enabling them 

to record the sale of every item and transmit the data to headquarters This 

allows K mart to respond quickly to what’s new. what’s in demand and what 
will keep customers coming back. 

These systems form the basis for centralized merchandising. And they 
are essential to reducing our selling, general and administrative expense 

ratio. Not only do we better control expenses but increase market share 

through better merchandising, and improve gross margin by making sure 
in-demand merchandise is on our shelves. 

POS scanning and satellite communications put advanced technology to 

work for K mart. And. in many ways, work to insure the success of our other 
’90s strategies. 

Our new ad program tells the K mart story in a new way. 

As the competition among discounters has become more intense, the 

need to tell the K mart story in a new way has become more important. So 
we’ve made some changes in our advertising program. 

In 19<S8, K mart went back to the once-a-week circular. We shifted 

emphasis in the circular to our lifestyle merchandise and this year we’ve 

redesigned the for mat. I he circular is now cleaner, more consistent, more 

easily identified with K mart and carries our advertising theme: “The quality 
you need, the price you want.” 

K mart saved $60 million over the past two years by switching to the 

once-a-week circular and passed 

the savings on to customers in 

the form of lower prices. It is esti¬ 

mated an additional $10 million will 

be saved in 1990. At the store 

level, we realized labor savings 

and gross margin benefits. And we 

were able to increase customer 

service because we decreased the 

number of “rainchecks” for ad 

merchandise. 

Since we can’t rely on the cir¬ 

culars to reach all our customers, 

we’ve stepped up our magazine, 

HOP radio and television advertis¬ 

ing. While we will spend less, our 

quality of advertising will be better. 

System helps reduce costs, 
increase market share, 
improve gross margin. 

K mart's once-a-week 
circular saved S60 million 
and increased customer 
service. 

Magazine. R0P. radio and 
TV ads stepped up. 
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K mart's new formats to 
be major source ot future 
growth and sales. 

Four new nameplates 
added in 18 months. 

In 1990 we will continue our regular television advertising schedule and 

concentrate on special seasonal programming as we did in 1989. 

The changes in our advertising program are designed to underscore the 

ever-expanding K mart story: that we are the discount leader and we will 

continue to offer new and better ways to serve the customer better than 

anyone else. 

K mart’s different retail formats are making a difference. 

In 1984. K mart began to diversify. We saw a need to experiment with 

different retail formats and to shape them into a major source of future 

growth and sales. K mart’s strategy was to acquire and create retailing 

businesses with growth rates above that of general retailing over the next 

seven to 10 years. 

In the last 18 months we’ve capitalized 

on our strategy as four new nameplates 

moved K mart into new. larger formats. 

PACE is our membership warehouse 

club. It targets small businesses, offering 

goods for less than they may cost through 

traditional suppliers. We’re merging our 

nine Makro units with PACE, creating a 

56-store chain covering 13 states. 

American Fare represents our entry 

into the large, combination store format. 

It offers both food and general merchan¬ 

dise under one roof and complementary 

services such as a bank, food court and 

card shop. While still experimenting with 

American Pare, we will open a second one 

in the Charlotte, North Carolina market 

on April 1,1990. We see both stores as 

laboratories for developing a working food 

and general merchandise combination 
concept. 

With Office Square and newly acquired 

T he Sports Authority, K mart has entered 

into so-called “category killer” formats- 

large, warehouse-style stores with a focus. 

1 he Sports Authority taps into Ameri¬ 

cas interest in sports and fitness, carrying 

a full assortment of hardlines, apparel and 

footwear. Our two Detroit-area Sports 
Giants will be converted to The Sports 

Authority stores this year. And 10 new 
stores are planned for 1990. 

Office Square is competing in the rap¬ 
idly growing office supply warehouse 

business. So far four Office Squares are 

open with more planned in the near future. 

Meanwhile, Builders Square, 

Waldenbooks and Pay Less Drug Stores 

continue to broaden our market share. 
Builders Square, having grown from eight to 141 stores, serves the do-it- 

yourself customer and small building contractor. Pay Less Drug Stores is a 

chain of 294 super drug stores located along the Pacific coast. Waldenbooks, 

1,255 strong with five different formats, is now the largest retailer of books in 

the world, and it will soon be one of the largest retailers of computer software 
and videotape materials. 

The different retail formats have added diversity, market share and sales 

to our corporation. We have no doubt they will continue to make a real differ¬ 
ence for us in growth and profits throughout the ’90s. 

K mart shapes the future. 

The '90s Strategies. They form the 

basis for our operations this decade and 

into the 21st century. And we believe they 

will help us achieve our primary merchan¬ 

dising goal: that K mart be a symbol to 

Americans. The place which helps them 

attain the quality of life guaranteed in the 

American dream-sooner, better and more 

conveniently than anyone else. 

Just as K mart has defined the very 

notion of discounting in the 

past, its ’90s strategies 

are certain to have real 

impact on America’s 

discounting future. 

K mar. Coiporation 1989 Annual Report 

Office Square and The 
Sports Authority move 
K mart into “category- 
killer" formats. 

Builders Square. 
Waldenbooks. Pay Less 
Drug Stores continue to 
broaden market share. 



11-Year Financial Summary 1989* 
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.. "“a-uiLume irom continuing retail 

operations before income taxes 

- Income from continuing retail operations 

eturn on beginning assets from continuing retail operations 

XSfiterelMlders'' 

Debt and equivalent as a % of total capitalization 

Employee compensation and benefits, per sales dollar 

Working capital ratio 

Summary of Operations <Milhous) 

Sales 

Cost of merchandise sold 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 

Interest expense-net 

Income from continuing retail operations before 

income taxes 

Income from continuing retail operations 

$29,533 

$21,745 

$ 6,(542 

$ 356 

$ 515 

$ 323 

Per-Share Data (Dollars) 

Earnings per common and common equivalent share from 

continuing retail operations 

Cash dividends declared 

Book value 

$ 1.61 

$ 1.64 

$ 24.90 

Financial Data (Millions) 

Working capital 

Total assets 

Long-term obligations-Debt 

-Capital leases 

Shareholders’ equity 

Capital expenditures-owned property 

Depreciation and amortization-owned property 

Weighted average shares outstanding 

$ 3,685 

$13,145 

$ 1.480 

$ 1,549 

$ 4,972 

$ 631 

$ 359 

200 

Financial Ratios 

6.4% 

43.4% 

15.1% 

1.9 

1988 

$27,301 

$19,914 
$ 6,184 
$ 313 

$ 1.244 
$ 803 

$ 4.00 
$ 1.32 

$ 25.12 

$ 3,654 
$12,126 
$ 1,358 
$ 1,588 
$ 5,(X)9 

$ 570 
$ 337 

200 

18.2% 

38.0% 

14.7% 
2.0 

198? 

$25,627 

$18,561 

$ 5,913 

$ 308 

$ 1.171 

$ 692 

$ 3.40 

$ 1.16 

$ 22.08 

$ 3.003 

$11,106 

$ 1,191 

$ 1,557 

$ 4.409 

$ 542 

$ 304 

202 
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1989 Operations and Financial Review 

Management Discussion & Analysis 

(Dollars) 

$2.00 

1.50 

1.00 

.50 

80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 

CASH DIVIDENDS 
DECLARED |*ER SHARE 
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Overview of 1989 

Fiscal 1989 was a challenging year for K mart Corporation. Consolidated sales in 
1989 were $29.5 billion, an 8.2% increase over 1988 sales of $27.3 billion. Sales in 1989 
included 53 weeks, compared with 52 weeks in 1988. Consolidated sales in comparable 
stores-those stores open effectively throughout both years-increased 2.0% over 1988 
on a 52-week basis. Net income in 1989 was $323 million, compared with $803 million in 
1988. a decrease of 59.8%. Results for the year were affected by a $422 million after-tax 
one-time charge, primarily for the restructuring of K mart stores, and by increased 
competitive pricing. 

The company has positioned itself to be one of the most successful retailers of the 
1990s and to achieve its objective in several different ways: 

In an effort to maintain its strong competitive position, during 1989 the company 
adopted an accelerated plan to relocate, expand and/or refurbish all existing domestic 
K mart stores to full-size, new-look stores. The company anticipates completion of this 
program in 1994. K mart’s new store concept features a new layout and increased cus¬ 
tomer service. Current plans call for approximately 250 new full-size stores, 620 expan¬ 
sions. 280 relocations to larger stores. 30 closings and 1.260 refurbishings. The expense 
of this program, excluding future capital expenditures, has been provided for in 1989 as 
part of a one-time provision of $640 million before taxes. 

During 1989, the prices of several thousand items were reduced to maintain our 
price leadership across America. Although this decision had an immediate adverse 
impact on gross margins, and thus profits for the year, the competitive pricing program 
is an essential part of a long-term strategy to increase sales, market share and overall 
profitability. 

Effective November 1989, K mart acquired PACE Membership Warehouse, Inc. 
(PACE) and the remaining 49% interest in Makro Inc. (Makro). PACE is headquartered 
in Aurora Colorado, and at January 31, 1990 operated a chain of 47 warehouse clubs in 

, )ur!nR1990 the listing Makro stores are currently planned to be converted 
to 1 ACE warehouse clubs. Management believes that the warehouse club concept will 
be a growth segment of the retail industry in the years ahead. The acquisition of PACE 
establishes h mart as a major force in this fast growing sector of retailing. 

. ^jSC j* markcd the 25th consecutive year that K mart Corporation increased 
cash dividends declared to its shareholders. Dividends declared in 1989 were $1.64 per 
share, compared with $1.32 per share in 1988. an increase of 24.2%. 

JSr the comPan>’offered t(> purchase all shares of K mart common stock 

purchased eSS than 199 shares. As a result of this offer, the company 
investors This ' k 'S C0”lmon shares for $15 million from approximately 13,2(X) 

smaller accounts^^ W' rtdUCe the adrninistrative costs associated with maintaining 
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Analysis of General Merchandise Operations 

r* a- Ks j i c ll,ldl lW() niontns oi lySy, Makro ware- 
houses, Canadian Kresge and Jupiter stores, and one American Fare store A three vear 

summary of the general-merchandise groups sales and operating income follows: ' 

(Millions LJ.S.$) 1989 
% 

Change 1988 
% 

Change 1987 
Sales 

United States $23,867 7.6 $22,177 4.5 $21 v>28 Canada 1,092 8.0 1.010 10.8 912 
Total Sales $24,959 7.6 $23.187 4.7 $22.140 
Operating Income $ 720 (49.9) $ 1.436 3.7 $ 1.384 Non-recurring Charge 598 — 
Operating Income Before Charge $ 1.318) (8.2) $ 1,436 3.7 $ 1.384 

Sales in 1989 included 53 weeks, compared with 52 weeks in 1988 and 1987 The 
increased sales in the general-merchandise group in 1989 were principally due to the 
inclusion of sales of PACE from the date of acquisition, a 2.0% comparable store sales 
increase, expansion of K mart’s competitive price program and new store openings. The 
1988 increase was attributed to increased emphasis on competitive pricing, continued 
merchandise enhancement and inflation. K mart sales in comparable stores-those 
domestic and Canadian stores open effectively throughout both fiscal years-increased 
2.0% in 1989 and 2.5% in 1988. The comparable sales increases were calculated on a 
52-week basis. The lower comparable store increase in 1989 was primarily due to 
increased competition and a lower rate of inflation. Sales per square foot (including 
unconsolidated K mart store licensee sales) were $191 in 1989. compared with $188 in 
1988, an increase of 1.5%. 

„ ^ mart Canada Limited's general-merchandise sales in Canadian dollars increased 
4.7% in 1989 compared with a 2.5% increase in 1988. The results for both 1989 and 1988 
in Canadian dollars were attributable to strong Christmas sales and improved merchan¬ 
dising strategies. K mart Canada’s U.S. dollar sales increase reflected a 3.2% improve¬ 
ment in the average Canadian dollar in 1989, compared with an 8.1% improvement in 
1988. 1 he average dollar exchange rates were .8445 in 1989, .8181 in 1988. and .7571 
in 1987. 

Effective November 1989, K mart Corporation acquired PACE Membership Ware¬ 
house. Inc. The company acquired 100% of the shares of PACE for $23 per share thmugh 
a tender offer and a merger with a wholly owned subsidiary. The total value of the trans- 
at tion was $.126 million. The acquisition of PACE has been accounted for under the pur¬ 
chase method and, accordingly, the results of operations have been consolidated from 
the date of acquisition. 

I ACE is headquartered in Aurora, Colorado, and operated 47 membership ware- 
ouse clubs in California, Colorado, Florida. Georgia, Iowa, Kentucky, Maryland, 
ichigan, Nebraska, North Carolina and Pennsylvania as of January 31, 1990. A ware- 

louse club sells a variety of brand name merchandise at prices generally below those of 
tra ltional wholesalers and discount and grocery retailers. A PACE warehouse club 
ypically occupies 100,(XX) square feet, offering members groceries and general 

merchandise. 
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In March 1988, K mart purchased a 51 .% interest in Makro Inc. Effective November 
1989 K mart acquired the remaining 49G minority intert st m Makro and plans to con¬ 
vert existing Makro stores into PACE warehouse clubs during 199<). 

Refer to Note (C) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for further information regarding acquisitions. 

Operating income measures the groups performance before interest, corporate 
expenses and income taxes. The general-merchandise groups results for 1989 were sig¬ 
nificantly impacted by the inclusion of a one-time charge of $598 million before taxes for 
the K mart store restructuring program and other charges. Excluding the non-recurring 
charge, operating income decreased 8.2<7r reflecting lower gross margins resulting from 
increased emphasis on the competitive pricing program. The 1988 increase was primarily 
the result of improved sales and expense control programs achieved by K mart stores. 

During 1989. an additional 559 Point-of-Sale (POS) scanning systems were installed 
in domestic K mart stores, bringing the total number to 1,739. By October 1990 all 
K mart stores will be equipped with POS scanning systems. In conjunction with the 
retail automation program, K mart continued development of the centralized merchan¬ 
dising program during 1989. By reducing the decision-making layers between customer 
and vendor, centralization allows quicker response to changing fashions and consumer 
spending patterns. Using information provided by POS scanning and the satellite 
network, centralized buying results in better in-stock positions in K mart stores and 
increased sales volume. Through the end of 1989 all apparel departments, hosiery, fash¬ 
ion accessories, small appliances, home electronics, cameras and jewelry were centrally 
merchandised. Four additional departments, curtains and drapes, floor coverings, major 
appliances and automotive, will be added to the program during 1990. 

During 1989, 72 K mart stores opened in the United States and Canada, compared 
with 64 openings in 1988. Also in 1989. 61 K mart stores were expanded to full-size 
stores and, of the 21 stores that closed, 19 were relocated to larger stores in the same 
market. It is anticipated that approximately 65 new stores will open in 1990, and, as part 
of the accelerated restructuring program, 11 stores are expected to be closed and 
344 stores are expected to be relocated, expanded or refurbished. 

1 he following table highlights the general-merchandise groups store activity 
during 1989: 

End End 
1987 1988 

Kmart 
U.S. 2.105 2,145 
Canada 118 119 

Kresge and Jupiter 50 37 
FACE 

Makro 6 
American Fare 

Total General 
-- 

Merchandise 2.273 2,307 

K mart Retail Square 

Feet (Millions) 128 131 

Kmart Store Sales 
~ - 

— 

Per Square Foot $ 183 $ 188 

1989 Activity 

Acquired Opened Closed End 

70 21 2,194 
2 - 121 

47 

47 

Planned 

End 

1990 

2.248 

121 

70 22 2,408 

127 

$ 191 

2,456 

Analysis of Specialty Retail Operations 

The company’s specialty retail group operates warehouse home improvement 
centers, super drug stores and retail book stores in the domestic retail market and 
special purchase discount stores in Canada. The following is a brief description of the 
specialty retail operations: 

■ Builders Square, /uc. - A typical Builders Square warehouse home improvement 
store occupies 8<).(XX) square feet and carries a wide selection of low-priced do-it- 
yourself merchandise displayed in a warehouse-style format. Builders Square 
operating results were greatly improved in 1989 primarily due to increased sales 
and higher gross profit margins resulting from an improved merchandise mix, and 
a reduced LIFO charge. 

■ Pay Less Drugstores Northwest. Inc. -Pay Less operates super drug stores which 
occupy from 25, (XX) to 80,(XX) square feet and offer a variety of merchandise 
ranging from traditional drug store offerings to cameras and film developing, 
automotive, lawn and garden items, and sporting goods merchandise. The oper¬ 
ating results improved in 1989 as compared to 1988 primarily due to increased 
sales and reduced store closing expense. 

■ Walden Hook Company. Inc. -A Waldenbooks store typically occupies 
3,000 square feet in a regional or local shopping mall and offers video and audio 
tapes and computer software as well as books. In addition to its own stores, 
Waldenbooks now operates book departments in 257 K mart stores. The 1989 
operating results were below the prior year due to lower gross margins resulting 
from increased competition in the retail book store industry and additional 
expenses related to the relocation of a distribution center and the discontinuance 
of two test concepts. 

■ Bargain Harold’s Discount Limited-Bargain Harold s stores offer exceptionally 
sharp pricing on special purchase merchandise and are designed to serve 
numerous Canadian communities too small to support traditional variety stores. 

In 1988, K mart introduced Office Square, a new specialty concept. Office Square 
stores carry office supplies, office furniture and business equipment. The typical store 
occupies approximately 25,(XX) square feet. Although the concept is still in the early 
phases, continued expansion in the next few years is expected. 

During 1989, K mart opened the first two Sports Giant stores in the Detroit metro¬ 
politan area. These stores offer a variety of sporting goods, footwear and apparel 
merchandise and occupy approximately 50,(XX) square feet. 

In March 1990 the company acquired The Sports Authority, Inc., operator of a chain 
of eight 4().(XX) to 50,(XX) square foot sporting goods stores: seven in Florida and one 
outside of Washington, D.C. The acquisition will be accounted for as a purchase, and 
accordingly the results of operations will be consolidated from the date of acquisition. 
During 1990 the operations of Sports Giant will be combined with those of The Sports 
Authority. 

Refer to Note (E) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for additional information regarding the purchase of The Sports Authority. 
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A three-year summary of the specialty retail group's sales and operating income 

follows: 

(Millions) 1989 
% 

Change 1988 
% 

Change 1987 

Sales $4,574 11.2 $4,114 18.0 gU87 

Operating Income 
Non-recurring Charge 

$ 87 
42 

21.6 $ 72 (4.1) $ 75 

Operating Income Before Charge $ 129 79.8 $ 72 (4.1) $~~~75 

The increase in the specialty retail group’s sales in 1989 resulted primarily from the 
groups store opening program. The groups comparable store sales increase was 1.8% in 
1989 and 4.3% in 1988. calculated on a 52-week basis. The lower comparable store 
increase in 1989 was primarily due to increased competition and refinement of merchan¬ 
dise strategies at Builders Square and Fay Less. The increase in operating profit in 1989 
was mainly a result of improved results at Builders Square and Fay Less and a reduced 
LIFO charge, partially offset by lower VYaldenbooks operating profit and a one-time 
charge of S42 million before taxes for the specialty retail group store closings and fixture 
write-offs associated with the refurbishment of previously owned Builders Square 
stores. Excluding the non-recurring charge, operating income increased 79.8% for the 
specialty group. 

The 1988 sales increase in the specialty group was due to both increased comparable 
store sales and additional store openings. I he decrease in operating income was primar¬ 
ily the result of a significantly higher LIFO charge for the group and higher store closing 
expense, primarily due to the closing of the Wonder World division of Fay Less, which 
more than offset improvements in operating income for the group. 

The specialty group continues to expand as illustrated in the following store 
summary: 

Builders Square 

Pay Less Drug Stores 

Waldenbooks 

Bargain Harolds 
Office Square 

Sports Giant 

The Sports Authority 

Total Specialty Retail 

Specialty Retail 

Square Feet (Millions) 

End 
1987 

Find 
1988 

1989 Activity 

Opened Closed End 

Planned 
Knd 
1990 

118 133 9 1 141 148 
254 269 32 7 294 339 

1.139 1,218 71 34 1,255 1,282 
150 153 7 5 155 122 

- 2 3 1 4 6 
— - 2 - 2 - 

__ __- - _ _ 20 
1,661 1,775 124 48 1,851 1,917 

_20 22 23 
1 
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Licensee Operations and Equity Investments 

Meldisco 

The company’s domestic K mart and Fay Less footwear departments are operated 
by the Meldisco subsidiaries of Melville Corporation. K mart store footwear depart¬ 
ments are owned 49% by the company and 51% by Melville. Sales of the K mart 
licensee footwear departments increased 3.8% to $1,102 million in 1989 and increased 
4.8% to $1,063 million in 1988. The sales increases in 1989 and 1988 were primarily due 
to a greater share of the better grade women’s and children’s footwear market. Equity 
in income of footwear operations in K mart stores was $43 million in 1989,1988 and 1987 

Refer to Note (I) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
for further information regarding the company’s investment in Meldisco. 

Coles Myer Ltd. 

At December 31. 1989 K mart had a 21.4% equity interest in Coles Myer Ltd.. 
Australia’s largest retailer. The market value of this investment as of January 31. 1990 
was $754 million, compared with $830 million at January 25.1989, based on the closing 
stock price of $6.64 (U.S. dollars) per share on the Sydney Stock Exchange. K mart's 
equity in income was $62 million in U.S. dollars in 1989, compared with $61 million 
and $49 million in 1988 and 1987, respectively. Equity income for 1989 was relatively 
unchanged from 1988 due primarily to a sluggish Australian retail sales environment 
and one-time gains on the sale of certain property and investments in 1988. Equity- 
income in 1988 increased due to strong operating results, one-time gains, lower Austra¬ 
lian income tax rates and an 11.8% improvement in the average Australian dollar versus 
the U.S. dollar. The average dollar exchange rates were .7920 in 1989. .7847 in 1988. 
and .7016 in 1987. 

At December 31, 1989, Coles Myer operated 968 supermarket, food service and 
liquor stores, 433 discount stores (including 138 K mart stores). 79 department stores 
and 172 specialty retail stores across Australia and New Zealand. 

For additional information regarding the company’s investment in Coles Myer, 
refer to Note (I) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Cost of Merchandise Sold 

Cost of merchandise sold, including buving and occupancy costs, as a percent of 
sales was 73.6% in 1989, compared with 72.9% in 1988 and 72.4% in 1987. The increase 
in 1989, as in 1988, was attributable to an increased emphasis by the general- 
merchandise group on competitive pricing and price leadership, and. for 1989, the inclu¬ 
sion of FACE and Makro operations which have a substantially lower gross profit margin. 
I he 1989 increase was partially offset by improved gross profit margins at Builders 

Square and a reduced LIFT) charge. The K mart store competitive pricing program is an 
essential part of a long-term strategy aimed at improving the company’s market share. 
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Substantially all of the company’s domestic inventories are measured using the 
last-in. first-out (LIFO) method of inventory valuation. LIFO provides a more accurate 
matching of current costs with current revenues, and measures the impact of inflation on 
inventories during periods of rising prices. Based on the U.S. I)epartment of Labor's 
Department Store Price Index for the year ended January 31,1990, the inflationary 
impact on inventories was a pretax charge of $90 million in 1989 compared with pretax 
charges of $160 million and $98 million in 1988 and 1987, respectively. The lower LIFO 
charge in 1989 is primarily due to a lower rate of inflation in 1989 than in 1988. partially 
offset by lower gross profit margins. The higher LIFO charge in 1988 was mainly due to 
greater inflationary pressures and lower gross profit margins. 

For additional information regarding the company’s merchandise inventories, refer 
to Note (G) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Operating Expenses 

Selling, general and administrative expenses, including advertising and excluding 
the $640 million one-time charge, were 22.5% of sales in 1989, compared with 22.7% 
and 23.1% of sales in 1988 and 1987, respectively. 

The following factors influenced operating expenses in 1989: 

Employee compensation and benefits increased 11.1% in 1989 to $4,461 million and 
5.4% in 1988 to $4,016 million. As a percent of sales employee compensation and 
benefits were 15.1%. 14.7% and 14.9% in 1989. 1988 and 1987, respectively. The percent 
of sales increase in 1989 was primarily attributable to salary increases for existing 
employees and the company’s store opening programs. The decline in 1988 was due to 
careful management of store hours and increased utilization of retail automation systems 
S^IDVe pn,dut-'tlvlt-V- Congress has passed legislation which takes effect April 1 
1990 to increase the minimum wage. Although this will have an adverse impact on com¬ 
pensation expense, it is not expected to be significant in 1990. 

increase ml084l'1Se ^ "J‘llion “ 1989' and 535 million in both 1988 and 1987. The 
Ae t0 f1endment* to the plan to comply with 

requirements of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. The 1987 pension expense included a 

informaUon^eg^ding the t0mpany,S voluntary earl-v retirement program. For additional 

5ESSS vSSSSST’refer lo N,,u',01 of— 

^°Unting for •’“■retirement Benefits Other Than 
adoption, this statement w, , lal Accounting Standards Board during 1989. Upon 
benefits such as health -mri'n ru|uirt’ emPl°yers to accrue for future postretirement 
mal as ^ effecton K mart is expected to be mini- 
other than through its penskin plans'^1' lt<mt postretirement benefits to its employees 

as a percent of sales frtWh ln compensation and benefits, and pension expense 
have substantially tower oDeratbL^16 m*"m of PACE and Makro operations, which 

operating expenses as a percent of sales. 

1987. In 1988 the^omm^v 'S 1989’ $581 mil,ion in 1988 and $617 million 
domestic K mart sSverUsinv ^Cost savi"«s by changing the 
from the previous program of t wice i week ° COjmpre^ens*ve once-a-week circulars 
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Reserve for K mart Store Restructuring and Other Charges 

Included in the results for 1989 is a $640 million pretax charge related to the 
expenses associated with the K mart store restructuring program as well as exDenses 
for the conversion of Makro warehouses into PACE membership warehouse clubs the 
settlement of certain litigation and other costs including subsidiary store closings ’lsu 
of taxes, the charge was $422 million, or $2.10 per share. 

For additional information regarding this provision refer to Note (B) of the accom¬ 
panying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Interest Expense 

A schedule of the components of net interest expense on debt follows: 

(Millions) 1989 1988 1987 
Interest Expense on Debt $205 $172 $156 
Interest Income 24 33 _22 
Net Interest Expense on Debt $181 $139 $134 

I he increase in net interest expense on debt in 1989 was primarily a result of higher 
levels of short-term borrowings resulting from higher inventory levels and the acquisi¬ 
tion of PACE. The increase in 1988 was principally a result of additional higher-cost, 
fixed-rate borrowings during the year. I he company s weighted average interest rates 
on total debt were 9.7% in 1989, 9.5% in 1988 and 8.9% in 1987. Weighted average inter¬ 
est rates for short-term borrowings were 9.1%, 7.5% and 6.8% for 1989. 1988 and 1987 
respectively. 

Net Income 

Net income for the year was $323 million, a decrease of 59.8% from 1988 net 
income of $803 million. The decrease was primarily a result of the one-time charge of 
$422 million after tax for K mart restructuring and other charges, reduced gross profit 
margins attributed to the expansion of the everyday low price program, and higher 
interest expense. Earnings per share were $1.61, $4.00and $3.40 for 1989. 1988 and 
98J' respectively. Excluding the one-time charge, net income was $745 million, 

or $1.71 per share, a decrease of 7.2% from 1988. 

t Jhe effectn'e income tax rate in 1989 was 37.3%. compared with 35.5% in 1988 and 
40. Tr in 1987. The increase in the company’s effective income tax rate in 1989 was due 
to a higher effective state and local tax rate. The decrease in 1988 was primarily a result 
° , u ax Reform Act of 1986 which reduced the federal statutory corporate income tax 
rate to 34% in 1989 and 1988. from 39% in 1987. 

Financial Accounting Standard No. 96 “Accounting for Income Taxes” (FAS 96) was 
issued in December 1987. The standard requires adjustment of deferred tax liabilities 
or enacted changes in the statutory federal tax rate. During 1989, the standard was 

amended to delay the required implementation of FAS 96 until fiscal years beginning 
a ter )ecember 15, 1991. The company currently has no plans to adopt this new 
pronouncement prior to the required date. However, had K mart adopted FAS 96 in 1989, 

e u,,nPany would have recognized a credit due to a reduction in deferred tax liabilities. 

Refer to Note (J) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
or urther information regarding income taxes. 

(Pollan) 
$4.00 
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Effects of Inflation 

The financial statements of K mart Corporation have been prepared on a historical 
cost basis under generally accepted accounting principles. K mart Corporation, like 
most non-food retailers, uses the LIFO method of inventory valuation in its historical 
financial statements. Thus, the cost of merchandise sold approximates current cost. In 
addition, because the company is refurbishing existing stores and opening new stores 
depreciation and amortization expense more closely approximates current cost. The 
company’s rental expense is generally fixed and is not affected by inflation although 
percentage rentals do account for some of the impact of inflation. 

Financial Condition 

Financial Objective 

K mart Corporations financial policy is designed to provide the company and its 
shareholders with an optimum return on investment, a solid capital structure and a high 
degree of financial flexibility. Obtaining optimum return on investment requires deploy¬ 
ment of the company’s assets and resources where they will provide the best return In 
seeking optimum return. K mart management continues to review potential retail 
investment opportunities in addition to funding an improved merchandise mix, the 
refurbishment, relocation and expansion of existing K mart stores, and the expansion 
of the company’s specialty retail operations. In addition. K mart management sold or 
closed K mart and specialty stores which did not generate sufficient returns The 
company expects that funds required to finance refurbishment of existing stores, future 
expansions and relocations, and acquisitions will be provided primarily bv internally 
generated funds, additional debt offerings, the sale and leaseback of owned properties 
and the leasing of land and buildings. 

Cash Flow- 

Company funds generated by operations, investing and financing activities is 
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows on page 33 are summarized 
below. Note (F) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements con 
tains additional information regarding the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Net cash used for operations in 1989 was a result of lower net income and higher 
inventories, partially offset by the restructuring provision and increased depreciation 
and amortization expense. Inventory was 22.M higher at January 31 1990 than at 
January 25. 1989. The lugher inventory levels are attributable to the general-merchandise 
group, the acquisition of FACE, new store openings and expansions and a temporary 
increase in the general-merchandise group due to the conversion of several departments 
to centralized merchandising. Depreciation and amortization expense are recognized m 
determining net income, but do not require cash outlays. These expenses have been 
steadily rising each year, and are expected to continue to increase due to increased capi¬ 
tal expenditures for the K mart store refurbishment and expansion program, the retail 
automation program and the specialty retail groups store opening program. Increased 
cash provided by operations in 1988 was the result of higher net income, increased 
depreciation and amortization expense, and a lower rate of increase in inventories net of 
accounts payable. 

Net cash used for investing is primarily comprised of capital expenditures for owned 
property and, in 1989, the acquisition of FACE. Capital expenditures for the general- 
merchandise group, which included refurbishments. expansions, retail automation and 
store openings, were $531 million. $459 million and $379 million in 1989, 1988 and 1987. 
respectively. Capital expenditures in the specialty retail group were primarily for new 
store openings and were $100 million in 1989, $1U million in 1988 and $163 million in 
1987. Net cash used for the acquisition of PACE in 1989 totaled $268 million. Offsetting 
net cash used for investing was $75 million and $69 million in 1989 and 1988, respec¬ 
tively, realized from sale and leaseback transactions entered into during the year. 
During 1989 and 1988, 27 and 16 properties were sold and leased back, respectively. 

1 lie future capital expenditures associated with the K mart store restructuring 
program are estimated at $2.3 billion, to be expended between 1990 and 1994. It is 
•mt iupated that operations will provide the majority of funds required to finance this 
program. 

(Millions) 
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Net cash provided by financing in 1989 increased primarily due to increased 
long-term debt and notes payable which resulted from the acquisition of PACE, higher 
inventory levels, and the issuance of $110 million of mortgage debt by Pay Less. The 
repurchase of stock in 1989 resulted from the company’s offer to purchase all shares 
from shareholders owning less than 100 shares. Approximately 18.2(H) shareholders, 
representing 366,285 shares, took advantage of this offer designed to save the company 

administrative expenses associated with maintaining these small accounts. The 
decrease in cash used for financing in 1988 was mainly a result of the issuance of 
$300 million of medium-term notes, offset by the company’s stock repurchase program 
and increased dividends paid. 

Due to the seasonal nature of the retail industry, the company continues to utilize 
commercial paper and revolving credit to cover peak working capital requirements. The 
approximate average short-term borrowings outstanding during 1989. 1988 and 1987 
were $551 million, $401 million and $671 million, respectively. The maximum amounts 
of aggregate short-term borrowings outstanding during 1989 were $1,548 million, 
compared with $808 million and $1,047 million in 1988 and 1987, respectively. Total 
short-term lines of credit available and unused were $474 million, $595 million and 
$695 million at the end of 1989,1988 and 1987, respectively. The increase in short-term 
borrowings during 1989 was primarily a result of higher inventory levels and the 
acquisition of PACE. 

, the comPan>'filed a shelf registration covering debt offerings up 
to $500 million. Under this shelf registration. K mart issued $3(H) million medium-term 
notes throughout 1988 at varying interest rates and maturities. At this time, the company 
has no plans for issuance of the $200 million remaining under this shelf registration. 

the f^K^987irK "’fa fUed $20° miHion 0f debentures due in 2017. This was 
the final $200 million of debt covered by the May 1986 shelf registration. 

Not/i^S0"3'information regarding these long-term debt offerings refer to 
Note (K) of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

and Tm"li0n- ««• million ,n KM) 
1988 art 1»7 n^Sy * ** Stee Wene $1'56’ *12S :lnd »• ^ 
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The following table provides additional information regarding dividends paid and 
common stock prices in 1989 and 1988: 

Fiscal Quarters 
Dividends Paid 

Calendar Quarters 
Market Prices 

1989 1988 
mgh 

1989 
Low 

1988 
High Low 

First $ .33 $ .29 $40% $34 $36% $29 
Second .41 .33 39% 35% 37 30% 
Third .41 .33 44% 36 m 31% 
Fourth .41 .33 40% 32% 39% 33% 
Tot *il Year $1.56 $1.28 $44% $32% $39’/) $29 

As of January 31, 1990, there were 69,917 K mart Corporation shareholders of 
record, compared with 84,595 at fiscal year-end 1988. The decrease in the number of 
shareholders in 1989 was the result of the company’s offer to purchase its common stock 
from shareholders owning less than 100 shares. K mart Corporation common stock is 
listed and traded on the New York. Pacific, Midwest and Tokyo Stock Exchanges 
(trading symbol KM). 

Ratios 

Return on Investment 

Return on investment (ROD is an important measure of the company’s effective use 
of its resources. ROI measures the relationship of net income to invested capital. Net 
income is adjusted for after-tax interest expense. Invested capital or total capitalization 
consists mainly of shareholders’ equity, interest bearing liabilities and debt-equivalent 
lease obligations. The company’s objective is to maximize ROI without eroding its 
competitive position. 

The following analysis shows the computation of ROI: 

(Millions) 1989 1988 1987 j 
Net income 
Interest expense net of taxes 

$ 323 
251 

$ 803 
228 

$ 692 
201 

Net income before financing costs $ 571 $1,031 $ 893 

lotal beginning capitalization $8,430 $7,607 $7,254 

Return on beginning investment 6.8# 13.6# 12.3# 

ower ROI in 1989 resulted primarily from a decrease in general-merchandise 
opt rating income caused by the one-time charge related mainly to the restructuring of 

niart stores and the expansion of the everyday low pricing program. Excluding the 
ont time charge, the return on beginning investment was 11.8*31. Improved ROI in 1988 
was primarily the result of increased operating income in the general-merchandise group 
unc a lower corporate income tax rate. 
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Inventory Turnover 

The inventor)’ turnover ratio, using replacement cost as measured by the first-in 
first-out (FIFO) method of inventory valuation, was 2.9 in 1989, and 3.0 in both 1988 and 
1987. The decline in inventory turnover in 1989 resulted primarily from higher inventory 
levels in the general-merchandise group. 

Working Capital Ratio 

The working capital ratio demonstrates the company’s ability to meet short-term 
obligations. The company’s working capital ratio was 1.9 in 1989, 2.0 in 1988 and 
1.9 in 1987. The decline in 1989 is attributable to increased short-term borrowings result 
ing from the acquisition of PACE and higher inventory levels. The improvement in 1988 is 
primarily due to increased cash and investments partially offset by a slight increase in 
accounts payable. 

Ratio of Income to Fixed Charges 

The ratio of income to fixed charges demonstrates the company’s ability to cover 
charges of a fixed nature, consisting primarily of interest expense, in relation to net 
income. The ratio of income to feed charges was 1.9 in 1989. 3.6 in 1988 and 3.5 in 19«7. 
Excluding the one-time charge, the ratio of income to fixed charges was 3.1. The 
decrease in 1989 resulted primarily from higher interest expense. The increase in 1988 
was primarily due to higher earnings, partially offset by increased interest expense. 

Capital Structure 

The following three-year analysis of the company’s capital structure indicates 

caSzadon8 tefm fmanClal fleXlblllty by comparin8total deb* ™d equivalent with total 

Long-term debt due within 
one year 

Capita] lease obligations 
due within one year 

Notes payable 

Long-term debt 

Capital lease obligations 

Other 

Total debt and equivalent 

Deferred income taxes 

Shareholders’ equity 

Total capitalization 

$ 11 .1 

3,896 
100 

4,972 

$8,908 100.0 

1988 % 1987 % 

$ i - $ 2 - 

89 1.1 85 1.1 

1,358 16.1 1,191 15.7 
1,588 18.8 1.557 20.5 

165 2.0 163 2.1 

3.201 38.0 2,998 39.4 
220 2.6 2(X) 2.6 

5,009 59.4 4,409 58.0 

$8,430 100.0 $7,607 100.0 

The * 

primarily attribmab^tomcl^^h6"13S3 percentof total capitalization in 1989is 
and the acquisition of PACE TV a orrowin8s associated with higher inventory levels 

holders’ equity increasing at a^reaterrate than^dUioiwl'debt!^ 
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Corporate Responsibility 

Contributions and Community Involvement 

In 198.), K mart s charitable contributions totaled tin mar i , 
major grants targeting the education programs discussiVeT w w'"' ^'7^° 
$170,000 to the American Red CrossLdisair rSf r Wt; provided 
cane and the Northern California earthquake We al < w tbe,Caro*ma coast hurr>- 
as bottled water and lumber to these areas. " also shlpped needed supplies such 

On a local level Good News Committees iHpntifv ^ » 
take action. From fundraisers to school partnership’ K mart mmuiuties needs and 
and maintain a strong presence in their communities ’ (w ^ associates are mvolved 
uted over 80.000 food bate* a Easter and Thanking*aXSTchnslmas 
shopping spree for more than 40.000 underprivileged children Sf ,I 

srasss b^5^®=*ssss: 
Education 

K mart has a long history of supporting education efforts through store involve¬ 
ment at the local level, scholarship funds and its Matching Gift program. While the 
company remains committed to these programs, we are beginning to address the 
growing national concern surrounding the education of children in grades kinder¬ 
garten through 12. Responding to President Bush’s challenge to business leaders to 
support education reform and development. Chairman Joe Antonini has joined the 
Business Round I able Task Force on Education. The Task Force, a 10-year initiative 
to improve K-12 education, brings together company CEOs and state governors to 
help implement national educational goals and develop reform strategies in each 
state. Chairman Antonini will spearhead these efforts in Michigan. And. K mart 
continues its support of Invent America!, a program that teaches students higher 
level thinking skills and encourages creativity in grades K-8. 

Our involvement in two new programs allows us to work directly with high 
school students. The Detroit Compact School program provides certainty of oppor¬ 
tunity in jobs and scholarships for students meeting the standards of the program. In 
St. Louis, Missouri we implemented the K mart Employment for Youth (KEY) pro¬ 
gram in conjunction with the University of Missouri-St. Louis. The program allows 
us to identify and provide job experience, training and scholarships for at-risk high 
school students. 

Environment 

During the ’90s we will see a resurgence of environmental concern. The retail 
industry has begun to address these concerns through education and action. K mart 
is committed to providing a healthier environment for America. Our emphasis 
involves three key areas: educating our employees and customers on how products 
we sell affect the environment: working with our suppliers to identify and modify, 
where possible, the products we sell that have a positive impact on the solid waste 
stream; and promoting the sale and use of environmentally friendly consumer 
products. 

Minority Affairs 

During 1989 our purchases from minority- and female-owned businesses 
increased to $406 million. These efforts were aided by Chairman Joe Antonini’s 
chairmanship of the National Minority Supplier Development Council. Year-round we 
attend procurement fairs, trade shows and other networking meetings to discover 
potential suppliers. We continue to advertise our program and the opportunities 
with K mart in minority publications. 
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Reports by Management and Independent Accountants 

K mart 

Responsibility 

for Financial 

Statements 

K mart corporation management is icapunaiurc wi , 
tations contained in this annual report. 1 his responsibility 

in selecting the appropriate accounting principles in me uumicum 
financial statements conform with generally accepted accounting principle 
consistent basis. 

To assist management in fulfilling these obligations, the company utilizes several tools, which 
include the following; 

■ The company maintains a system of internal accounting controls to provide for the integrity 
of information for purposes of preparing financial statements and to assure that assets are 
properly accounted for and safeguarded. This concept of reasonable assurance is based on 
the recognition that the cost of the system must be related to the benefits to be derived. 
Management believes its system provides this appropriate balance. 

As part of the internal control system, the company has a policy of Standards of Business 
Conduct and Management Integrity Statements. All officers and key employees periodically 
submit a signed statement regarding compliance with these policies. 

■ An Internal Audit Department is maintained to evaluate, test and report on the application of 
internal accounting controls in conformity with standards of the practice of internal auditing 

■ The Board of Directors appoints the independent accountants to perform an examination of the 
company s financial statements. This examination includes, among other things, a review of the 
system of internal controls as required by generally accepted auditing standards. 

■ The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting solely of outside directors meets 
regular!} with management, internal auditors and the independent accountants to assure that 
each is carrying out its responsibilities. The internal auditors and independent accountants both 
have full and free access to the Audit Committee, with and without the presenc^Zanagemlnt. 

Corporation management is responsible for the integrity of the information and represen¬ 
ted in this annual report. This responsibility includes making informed estimates and jude- 

Report of 
Independent 
Accountants 
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; contained in this annual report. 1 Ins responsibility includes making informed estimates and judg¬ 

ments in selecting the appropriate accounting principles in the circumstances. Management believes the 

al statements conform with generally accepted accounting principles and have been prepared on a 

J. E. Antonini 
Chairman of the Board. President 
and Chief Executive Officer 

T. E Murasky 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of K mart Corporation 

statements ofbalance sheets a"d the related consolidated 

the financial position of K mart Corporation anddsTh ^ PrCSent fa'rly’in a11 material aspects, 
and the results of their operations and their ff bbldianeLs at Januar-V 31- 1990 and January 25. 191 
January 31,1990, in conformity with generallv m’S,<>r eac 1 *he three years in the period ended 
ments are the responsibility of the comtianv’c °eP ° account'n2 principles. These financial state- 
these financial statements based on our audits wage™fnt’ (’ur responsibility is to express an opinion i 

nee with generally accepted auditing standards ul°+ lK kd °ur audlts °f these statements in accor- 
o tain reasonable assurance about whether the fin- C recluire that we plan and perform the audit to 

n au it includes examining, on a test basis evid^n^3 stalements are free of material misstatement, 
financial statements, assessing the accounting the amounts and disclosures in the 
gement, and evaluating the overall financial statem PfS USed and s'Kn'hcant estimates made by man- 
reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above presentatlon- We believe that our audits provid. 
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a V CJL \AJ(j£t^Ue 

200 Renaissance Center 
Detroit. Michigan 
March 7, 1990 

(Millions, except per-share data) 

Sales 

Licensee fees and rental income 

Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 

Interest income 

Cost of merchandise sold (including 
buying and occupancy costs) 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 

Advertising 

Restructuring of Kmart stores and other charges 

Interest expense; 
Debt 

Capital lease obligations 

Income before income taxes 

Income taxes 

Net income for the year 

Earnings per common and common equivalent share 

Weighted average shares 

Set accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

January 31, 
1990 

January 25, 
1989 

January 27. 
1988 

$29,533 $27,301 $25,627 
200 249 237 
105 105 92 
24 33 22 

29,922 27.688 25.978 

21,745 19,914 18.564 
6,071 5,603 5.296 

571 581 617 
6-10 — — 

205 172 156 
175 174 174 

29.407 26.444 24,807 | 

515 1.244 1,171 

192 441 479 | 

$ 323 $ 803 $ 692 

S 1.61 $ 4.00 $ 3.40 | 

2(H). 7 200.6 203.5 | 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

($ Millions) 

Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash (includes temporary investments of 

$35 and $594, respectively) 
Merchandise inventories 
Accounts receivable and other current assets 

Total current assets 

Investments in Affiliated Retail Companies 

Property and Equipment-net 

Other Assets and Deferred Charges 

Liabilities and Shareholders* Equity 

Current Liabilities: 

Long-term debt due within one year 
Notes payable 

Accounts payable-trade 

Accrued payrolls and other liabilities 
Taxes other than income taxes 
Income taxes 

Total current liabilities 

Capital Lease Obligations 

Long-Term Debt 

Other Long-Term Liabilities including 
K mart Restructuring Obligations 

Deferred Income Taxes 

Shareholders' Equity: 

Common stock, 500.000,000 shares authorized- 
shares issued 204.918,993 and 204 293 757 ’ 
respectively. ,0'> 

Capital in excess of par value 

Treasury shares 

Foreign currency translation adjustment 

Total shareholders’ equity 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Fi, 
inancial Statements. 

K mm Corp°ra**on 1989 Annual Rcpor, 

January 31, 
1990 

$13,145 

205 
602 

(1) 

4,341 
(146) 

(29) 

4,972 

$13,145 

$ 353 

6,933 
698 

January 25, 
1989 

$ 948 
5,671 

527 

$12,126 

204 
588 

4,345 
(131) 

3 

5,009 

$12,126 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(Millions) 

Fiscal Year Ended 

JanuaryI January^ 
1989 i988 1990 

Cash Provided by (Used for): 

Operations 
Net income 

Noncash charges (credits) to earnings: 

Depreciation and amortization 

Restructuring of K mart stores and other charges 
Deferred income taxes 

Undistributed equity income 

Increase in other long-term liabilities 
Other-net 

Cash provided by (used for) current assets and 
current liabilities: 

(Increase) in inventories 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Other-net 

Total provided by (used for) continuing retail operations 

Total provided by (used for) discontinued operations 

Net cash provided by (used for) operations 

Investing 

Additions to owned property 

Acquisition of PACE 

Proceeds from the sale of property 
Other-net 

Net cash used for investing 

Financing 

I rtxeeds from issuance of long-term debt 
and notes payable 

Reduction in long-term debt and notes payable 

Reduction in capital lease obligations 

Common stock issued 

Reissuance of treasury shares 

Purchase of treasury shares 
Dividends paid 

Net cash provided by (used for) financing 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents 
Lash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year 

accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

$ 323 

161 

582 

(1,042) 

(216) 

$ 803 

437 

$ 692 

401 

(418) 
102 

(76) (73) 90 

(116) 1,216 966 

13 (5) (58) 

(103) 1,211 908 

(631) (570) (542) 
(268) — _ 
147 117 30 
(53) (52) (27) 

(805) (505) (539) 

718 346 200 
(1) (184) (318) 

(92) (96) (83) 
14 16 46 
— — 14 

(15) (33) (75) 
(311) (256) (225) 

313 (207) (441) 

(595) 499 (72) 
948 449 521 

$ 353 $ 948 $ 449 
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity 

Common Slock 

$1 Far Value 

Share* Issued 

202,183,310 

1.329.229 

Treasury 

Shares ($ Millions) 

203.512.539 

781.218 

1.054.600 

204,293,757 4,861,862 

291.918.993 

366.285 

5.228.117 

Common 

Slock 

1.851.122 Balance at January 28, 1987 $202 

Net income for the year 

Cash dividends declared. 

$1.16 per share 

Common stock sold under 

stock option plans 

Purchase of treasury shares. 

2.679,200 at cost 

Reissue of treasury shares 

(723,360) for employee savings plan 

Foreign currency translation 

adjustment 

3.807.262 Balance at January 27,1988 204 

Net income for the year 

Cash dividends declared. 

$1.32 per share 

Common stock sold under 

stock option plans 

Purchase of treasury shares, 

at cost 

Foreign currency translation 

adjustment 

Balance at January 25, 1989 201 

Net income for the year 

Cash dividends declared. 

$1.64 per share 

Common stock sold under 

stock option plans 

Common stock issued under 

restricted stock plan 

Purchase of treasury shares, 
at cost 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustment 

Balance at January 31.1990 $205 

Capital in 

Excess of 

Far Value 

$528 

Restricted 

N'Hk 

Deferred 

Compensation 

$- 

Retained 

Earnings 

Treasury 

Shares 

29 

15 

$3,347 

692 

(233) 

571 

16 

588 

$602 

(1) 

S(l) 

3,806 

803 

$ (37) 

(98) 

(327) 

$4,341 

(131) 

(15) 

$(116) 

roreign 

Currency 

Translation 

Adjustment 

$(101) 

78 

3 

(32) 

$ (29) 

Total 

Share¬ 

holders’ 

_Equity 

S3,939 

4,40 

5,00! 

$4,97 

K nU" CorP°,a,,on 1989 Annual Rep,,,, 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

^ Fisc* year 1» 

subsidiaries ,he 

lor by the equity method uSSSS‘ 
transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. ’ ' ^ intercompany 

Earning Per Common and Common Equivalent Share: The company computes earnines oer 

common and common equivalent share by dividing net income bvThe weXd aveSe number 
of shares of common stock and dilutive common stock equivalents outstandingduriXXvS 
X* "nU7fer 0 c“" sh?res “ rreased *the number of shares issuable undeXs^k 

ption Ians, less the number of shares that are assumed to have been repurchased at average 
market prices with the proceeds of sales under the plans. 8 

Foreign Operations: Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the 
exc hange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Results of operations are translated at average 
exchange rates during the period for revenues and expenses. Translation gains and losses 

sharehofders^equ^ty31'0^ ” *** eXchange rates are accumulated as a separate component of 

Inventories: Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, using the retail 
method, on the last-in, tirst-out basis for substantially all domestic inventories and the first-in 
first-out basis for the remainder. 

Property Owned: Land, buildings, leasehold improvements and equipment are recorded at cost. 
Major replacements and refurbishings are charged to the property accounts while replacements, 
maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are 
expensed currently. The company capitalizes interest cost as part of the cost of constructing 
capital assets. The cost of all properties retired and the accumulated depreciation thereon are 
eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is taken into income. 

Depreciation: The company computes depreciation on owned property principally on the straight- 
line method for financial statement purposes and on accelerated methods for income tax 
purposes. Most store properties are leased and improvements are amortized over the term of the 
lease but not more than 25 years. Other annual rates used in computing depreciation for financial 
statement purposes are 2% to 4% for buildings. 10% to 14% for store fixtures and 5% to 33% for 
other fixtures and equipment. 

Leased Property under Capital Leases: The company accounts for capital leases, which transfer 
substantially all of the benefits and risks incident to the ownership of property, as the acquisition 
of an asset and the incurrence of an obligation. Under this method of accounting for leases, the 
asset is amortized using the straight-line method and the obligation, including interest thereon, 
is liquidated over the life of the lease. All other leases (operating leases) are accounted for by 
recording periodic rental expense over the life of the lease. 

Licensee Sales: The company’s policy is to exclude sales of licensed departments from total sales. 
Sides from licensed departments are primarily comprised of sales from the Meldisco subsidiaries 
of Melville Corporation. See Note (I) for further information regarding licensee sales of Meldisco. 

Pre-Opening and Closing Costs: The company includes store operating costs incurred prior to 
opening a new retail unit in current period expenses. When the decision to close a retail unit is 
made, the company provides for future net lease obligations, nonrecoverable investments in 
fixed assets, other expenses directly related to discontinuance of operations and estimated 
operating losses through expected closing dates. 

Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are provided on nonpermanent differences between financial 
statement and taxable income. The company accrues appropriate U.S. and foreign taxes payable on 
all of the earnings of subsidiaries and affiliates, except with respect to earnings that are intended 
to be permanently reinvested, or are expected to be distributed free of additional tax by operation 
of relevant statutes currently in effect and by utilization of available tax credits and deductions. 
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(B) Reserve for Restructuring of K mart Stores and Other Charges 

In 1989. the company recorded a one-time charge of $640 million before taxes. Net of taxes tl 
charge was $422 million, or $2.10 per share. The provision includes anticipated costs asso • • , 
with K mart stores which will be closed, relocated, enlarged or refurbished. These costs 1 •I/'.l 
represent approximately 80% of the total reserve, include the estimated lease obligations fo JC" 
store closings and relocations as well as estimated fixed asset write-offs, primarily furniture 
fixtures, for all affected stores. The remainder of the reserve is for subsidiary companies’ st 
closings, fixture write-offs associated with the refurbishment of previously owned Builders 
Square stores, the cost of converting Makro warehouse locations into PACK membership w- 
houses and the settlement of certain non-mutine legal matters including the Fashion I Ions • iy 

tion which was settled following the appellate courts reversal of the judgment against the comm83' 
Store closing expense net of tax for 1988 and 1987 was $18 million and $17 million respective y 

(C) Acquisitions and New Ventures 

36 

E^ctiveNorember 1989. K mart Corporation acquired PACE Membership Warehouse Inc 
(PACE). The company acquired 100% of the shares of PACE for $23 per share in cash through , 
tender offer and a merger with a wholly owned subsidiary. The total value of the tr in ~ ^ 
$326 million. PACE is headquartered in Aurora. Colorado, and at jljy*31 
membership warehouses in 11 states. A PACE warehouse typically occuoies'im d ? 
offering members both groceries and general merchandise.^ ' P ' SqiJare feet> 

The PACE acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase and accordinak- . ... , 
operations haw been consolidated with those of the commnv tv,. i 1.1 ’’}le esu s 

$244 million excess of cost over the fair value of assets acquired i h ^ date ° acq“,sltion- l he 
line basis over 40 years. 4 quired is being amortized on a straight- 

*51^ ""^Sh,p ,nto™ «M*»Inc., a 
«*•* SHVs mjgmEX,<S?V’’ K ■« pur- 
19911. all Makro tarrion® will be c™er,“ 'T' DurinS «* «■* HW 
associated with this conversion tave P wareh™s«- The expenses 
has C..SOI,toed the resul.s of Makro operas tom rhe 

In.■ of Birmingham. Ahbena'Iofc''.^Mx-ricanF^ ,"rn“"onaPartnership wilh Bruno’s 
stores in the United States. K mart has a 5iWc f(K,d/«eneral merchandise combination 
owns 49%. Each company is equJlv repreSnteZ m P ,nteR?St ,n the ^tnership and Brunos 
American Fare opened January 29 S m £ °f the ****** The first 

respectively, and offer both grocerSand in T* 244’(M) and 164.000 square feet, 
of American Fare operations in 1989. k ^ merchandlse- K mart consolidated the results 

,D) discontinued Open.!j„ns 

KM Insurance Company aEvictori/knds^' °f the tW° remainin« insurance companies 
jdre sa e of I,,". Star Life InsurantS ** S completed 

adequate at January 31. 1990. '"W discontinued insurance operations is considered 
<E) Subsequent Event 
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^ailiiaarlcred In Port Lauderdale. 

Florida and one i S offer,nf? a broad range of sni.n n °f!,lght larKe f(,rmat> 40.000 to 50.000 
chase, and according^ashington, I) c The i K<M.,ds at everyday low prices, seven in 

and accordingly, the results of operations wiM ^Uls,0°n will ho accounted for as a pur- 
be consolidated from the date of acquisition. 

$58 iXm.n$124 miSrandand.equipment of 
transactions have been excluded tom 

'to,‘-31ZSr“u^ “f • °f deposit and 

for the purposes of the statement of cash flows. The effect ofehan^^ w h ^ cashuequ,vaIents 
on cash balances is not material. hanges in foreign exchange rates 

Cash paid for interest and income taxes follows: 

(Miliums) 
1989 1988 1987 

Interest (net of amounts capitalized) 
$370 $330 $329 

Income taxes — 
$371 $423 $386 

(G> Merchandise Inventories 

A summary of inventories by method of pricing and the excess of current cost over stated 
LlhO value follows: 

(Millions) 

Last-in, first-out (cost not in excess of market) 

Lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market 

Total 

Excess of current cost over stated LIFO value 

January 31, January 25, 
1990 i989 

$6,288 $5,090 
645 581 

$6,933 $5,671 

$ 988 $ 898 

(H) Property and Equipment 

The components of property and equipment are: 

(Millions) 
January 31, 

1990 
January 25, 

1989 

Property owned: 

Land $ 115 $ 127 
Buildings 353 381 

Leasehold improvements 860 689 

Furniture and fixtures 3,683 3,353 

Construction in progress 53 68 

Pmperty under capital leases 2,437 2,416 

7,507 7,034 
Less-accumulated depreciation and amortization: 

Property ow ned (2.483) (2,033) 

Property under capital leases (1,174) (1,105) 

Total $3,850 $3,896 

Accumulated depreciation for owned property includes $192 million of the K mart restructuring 
provision as of January 31,1990. 
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(11 Investments in Affiliated Retail Companies 

Meldisco Subsidiaries of Melville Corporation 

All U.S. K mart footwear departments are operated under license agreements with the Meld 
subsidiaries of the Melville Corporation, substantially all of which are 49% owned by the con 'SC° 
and 51% owned by Melville. Meldisco also operates footwear departments in Pay Less Drue st'*)any 
under a license agreement. Fees and income earned under the license agreements in 1989 ig^S 
and 1987 of $174 million. $166 million and $159 million, respectively, are included in licensee f • 
and rental income. The company's equity in the income of footwear departments in K mart ^ 
stores and dividends received in 1989, 1988 and 1987 were as follows: 

Equity in income of Meldisco operations 

Dividends 

$ 43 

39 

1988 

$ 43 

$ 35 

Meldisco subsidiaries' summarized financial information follows: 

K ma" CorporJ,,un 1»89 Annual Rep,,, 

retailer in Australia. 

('oles Myer Lid. 

The company has a 21.4% equity interest in Coles Myer Ltd., the largest 

Income earned under the K mart license agreement «•; „• 
$3 million in 1987 is included in licensee fees and rental mmm 'Th 1989' U ™lli<,n in 1988 and 

income of Coles Myer's operations dividends w*r. a 1 .>me' company s eQuitv in the 

value of Coles Myers common stock owned by the com^nySows!" ^ ^ ** ^ market 

(Millions U.S. $) 

Equity in income 
1989 1988 1987 

S 62 $ 61 $ 49 
Dividends -- — 

S 32 $ 29 $ 16 
Equity of K mart Corporation sin $406 $288 
Market value of Coles Myers common stock 

$754 $830 $432 

Unchanged due Primarily t0 a sluK8'sh Australian economy 
in the latter hall of 1989. Equity in income increased in 1988 due to higher operating income and ' 
one-time gams on the sale of certain property and investments. The average exclie rSes fern 
Australian to U.S. dollars were .7920 in 1989. .7847 in 1988 and .7016 in 1987. 

1 he cumulative effect of translating the company's equity in the investment in Coles Myer was a 
reduction ofmillion as of January 31.1990. an increase of $3 million as of January 25,1989 
and as of January 2/. 1988 was a reduction of $57 million. 

Summarized financial information adjusted for conformity with U.S. generally accepted account¬ 
ing principles for Coles Myers most recent fiscal years follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended 

(Millions U.S. $) 
July 30, 

i989 
July 31, 

1988 
July 26. 

1987 
Net sales $11,310 $9,442 $7,602 

Net income S 226 $ 205 $ 170 

(Millions U.S. $) 
Julv30, 

1989 
July 31. 

1988 
Julv26, 1 

1987 

Current assets $ 1.469 $1,378 $1,131 
Noncurrent assets 2.204 2,297 1.614 

Total assets $ 3,673 $3,675 $2,745 

Current liabilities $ 1,426 $1,295 $1,023 
Noncurrent liabilities 765 913 535 
Equity 1,482 1,467 1,187 

Total liabilities and equity $ 3,673 $3,675 $2,745 

The company and Coles Myer have guaranteed indebtedness related to certain properties in 
Australia on a joint and several basis. Coles Myer subsequently indemnified K mart Corporation 
from any liability incurred pursuant to its guarantees. As of January 31, 1990. the amount guaran¬ 
teed was $24 million. 

Unremitted earnings of unconsolidated affiliates included in consolidated retained earnings were 
$271 million at January 31. 1990. 
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(J) Income Taxes 

Components of income before income taxes follows: 

1989 

$175 

$192 

company’s effective tax rate follows: 

Current: 
Federal 
State and local 
Foreign 

Deferred: 
Restructuring of K mart stores 

and other charges (] 
Excess of tax over book 

depreciation 
LIFO inventory 
Lease capitalization 
Other 

Total income taxes 

A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the 

(Millions) 

Federal statutory rate 
State and local taxes. 

net of federal tax benefit 
Tax credits 
Equity in income of 

affiliated retail companies 

subject to lower tax rates 
Other 

Total income taxes 

t ^^Hc^between' f mancia^sta temenfa8 fr" income taxes result Pri™- 

capital leases^ St0re restructur'n8 provision and the^fec^ofacc^untSg foncertataas 

credits. 989 3nd 1988 Were h*«her than in 1987 as a result of increased Targeted jobs Tax 

$231 million at januan4S3°l!SlSd,ar,eS’ Whichare ,ntended to be permanently reinvested, totaled 

1988 
1987 

$330 $371 
81 71 
22 25 

43 38 
1 11 

(5) (7) 
(31) (30) 

$441 $479 

1988 1987 1989 1988 1987 
$423 $457 34.0% 34.0% 39.0% 

53 
(10) 

43 
(4) 

7.4 
(1.6) 

4.3 
(.8) 

3.7 
(.3) 

(31) 
_6 

$441 

(31) 
14 

$479 

(6.0) 
3.5 

37.3% 

(2.5) 
.5 

35.5% 

(2.6) 
1.1 

40.9% 
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(K) Long-Term Debt 

KwSSffiSSS 'i «i—' - 
Accounting Standard No. 103 was issued in 1989 and )e(.ember 15’Financial 

for FAS 96 fiscal >«rS mTtrTSf' 
m 1989. The provisions of FAS % generally follow the liability d‘d n<>t de,Ct appllcatl(,n 
taxes. Accordingly, the statement requ.res ad.ustment of a HefST °\a<?™ntmZfor In«>me 
effect of a change in tax law or rates. The effect shall be in -i„h a dt3X Hbljlty !,r asset for the 

includes Ihe emiclment date. Had K marl adapted FAS % in 1999 '?^"come “r thc perwd that 
rased a credit due t„ a reduction in defernrf tS liabilities taw «««• 

(Miliums) January 31. 
i990 

January 25, 
i989 

8%% debentures due 2017 

(net of unamortized discount of $10 as of January 31. 1990) $ 290 $ 289 

200 
10*/2% debentures due 2017 

8%% debentures due 1997 
200 

(net of unamortized discount of $1) 

12!/h% notes due 1995 
199 199 

(net of unamortized discount of $1) 149 149 
Medium-term notes 300 300 
12l/2% debentures due 2005 1(H) 100 

71 Mortgages 179 
Other 74 51 
Total 1.491 1,359 
Portion due within one year 11 1 
Long-term debt SI.480 $1,358 

In October 1989, Pay Less Drug Stores Northwest, Inc., issued a mortgage note payable of 
$110 million. The note bears an interest rate of 91 s% and is secured by various Pay Less proper¬ 
ties. Interest and principal are payable through monthly installments from November 1, 1989 to 
October 1, 2004. The note is redeemable in whole on any installment payment date. 

In February 1988. K mart Corporation filed a shelf registration statement with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission covering a proposed offering of up to $500 million principal amount of debt 
securities. As of January 31, 1990, the company had issued $300 million fixed-rate medium-term 
notes maturing from two to 10 years from the date of issue. The average coupon rate of these 
notes is 9.25% and the average term of the notes is 6.2 years. 

In December 1987, the company issued $200 million of 10V-% debentures due December 1, 2017. 
The debentures are redeemable at 100% of the principal amount through annual sinking fund pay¬ 
ments on December 1. 1998 through 2016 of not less than $10 million or more than $30 million. 
Prior to December 1. 1997, the company may not redeem any debentures from or in anticipation 
of borrowed funds having an interest cost to the company of less than 10.5% per year. I he deben¬ 
tures are otherwise redeemable in whole or in part, at any time at the option of the company, at 
prices declining from 110.5% to 100% of the principal amount. Interest is payable semi-annually 
on June 1 and December 1 of each year. 
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The $300 million 8%% debenture's due January 15. 2017 are redeemable at 100% „f t|le • 
amount through annual sinking fund payments on January 15. 1998 through 2016 of not les .nttLPal 
$15 million or more than $45 million. Prior to January 15, 1997. the company may not redi 7 ' ^ 
debentures from or in anticipation of borrowed funds having an interest cost to the coma ^ 3ny 
less than 8.7% per year. The debentures are otherwise redeemable, in whole or in part "t ' 
time at the option of the company, at prices declining from 108.4% to 100% of the princi* l ^ 
amount. Interest is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 of each year. 

The $200 million 8Vs% debentures due January 1. 1997 are not redeemable prior to July l ioq- 
On or after that date the debentures may be redeemed, at the option of the company in It 
in part, at any time at 100% of the principal amount plus interest accrued to the date of r I. °r 
tion. Interest is payable semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each year. edemP' 

The $150 million 12W notes are due March 1. 1995 and the $100 million of 12‘A% 
due March 1. 2005. The respective notes and debentures are not redeemablepriorto "" are 
maturity. Interest is payable senn-annually with respect to each of these issues on March l * a 
September 1 of each year. rcn 1 and 

ZSZZZZ^comPa[,y had noout- 

...dcU.d.xsr 
19W).$U:55* mTsSTISSffi mmz subs'quenl *°1989-1,1 mi|Ii<«is. are: 

^^Compensating Balances and Current .Votes Payable 

for interest rates not exceeding the -prime" end.n« ra 8 mi,lion which Provide 
Port of certain lines of credit it is exLted h.7 0nany, borrowings thereunder. In sup- 
deposi, with the banks, whichwil1 be maintained on 
additional 10% on the portion in use. whereas cVl^r "* the eXtent that 11 is not in use and an 
balances. The company is free to withdrawTheSlS reqU,re fees in ««* of compensating 

A. January 31 Wo. notes payable «T 7 '"S a“°Un'S * ^,ime' 
"f cial"» <mm*average intent rat Ttr7f to',mpris«i of the company’s com- 
P< per outstanding at January 25,1989. * ere were n° notes payable or commercial 
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(Ml Teases 

Description of Leasing Arrangements: The comnanv 
facilities. K mart store leases are generally for terms of ^ ■ operatl°ns Primarily in leased 
options which allow the company the option to extend th~ I f mu tiple five*year renewal 
the initial noncancellable term. Subst ^ °P 50 years 
terms varying fmm five 35 years with “ *** <” 

Certain leases provide for additional rental payments based on a percent of sales in excess of a 
specified base. Also, certain leases provide for the payment by the hSeSafSSS?S£ 
(taxes, maintenance and insurance). Some selling space has been sublet to oSSSS? 
certain of the company s leased facilities. retailers in 

\ea®esare-.mt,nentS minimum lease pa^'ments with respect to capital and operating 

Minimum 
Lease Payments 

(Millions) 
Capital Operating 

Fiscal Year: 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 

$ 349 
346 
338 
327 

$ 497 
477 
449 
422 

1994 315 397 
Later years 2.951 3,641 
Total minimum lease payments 

Less-minimum sublease rental income 
4,626 5.883 

(282) 
Net minimum lease payments 4,626 5,601 
Less: 

Estimated executory costs (1,401) (607) 
Amount representing interest (1,583) (2.571) 

1.642 2.423 
Portion due within one year 93 177 

Long-term obligations under leases $1,549 $2,246 

The company has guaranteed indebtedness related to certain leased properties financed by- 
industrial revenue bonds. As of January 31, 1990, the total amount of guaranteed indebtedness 
was $314 million, of which $108 million is included in capital lease obligations. 
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(M) Leases continued Rental Expense: A summary of operating lease rental expense and short-term rentals follows 

Minimum rentals 
Percentage rentals 
Less-sublease rentals 

Total 

1089 1988 

$166 $402 
6(1 57 

(571 (54) 
$169 $405 

Reconciliation of Capital Lease Information: The impact of recording amortization and 
expense versus rent expense on capital leases is as follows: interest 

(Millions) 

Amortization of capital lease property 
Interest expense related to 

obligations under capital leases 

Amounts charged to earnings 
Related minimum lease payments net of 

executory costs 

Excess of amounts charged over 
related minimum lease payments 

Related mimmum lease payments above exclude executory costs for 1984 iq«k . ^ ,QU7 • 
amounts of $85 million. $82 million and $79 million, respectively. ' 9 d 1987the 

1989 1988 J987 
$102 $100 $ 97 

175 174 174 
277 274 271 

(265) (261) (254) 

$ 12 $ 13 $ 17 
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<N> 
Business Group Information 

The dominant portion of the company’s business is ventral 
operation of a chain of K mart discount department stores. PACE^house'S Mak!^ 
warehouses and an American Pare store Oneratinnw ^ , UUDS* tVlakro 

Sports Giant. Business group information follows: ^uare and 

Sales 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total 

Licensee fees and other income 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total 
Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 

Total revenues from operations 

Operating income 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total 

Equity in income of affiliated retail companies 
Interest expense-Debt 

-Capital lease obligations 
Corporate expense 

Income before income taxes 
Income taxes 

Net income 

Identifiable assets 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total 

Investments in affiliated retail companies 
Assets of discontinued operations 

Total assets 

Capital expenditures-Owned and leased 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total capital expenditures 

Depreciation and amortization expense 
General merchandise 
Specialty retail 

Total depreciation and amortization expense 

1989 1988 1987 

$24,959 $23,187 $22,140 
4,574 4.114 3,487 

29,533 27,301 25,627 

274 273 252 
10 9 7 

284 282 259 
105 105 92 

S29.922 $27,688 $25,978 

$ 720* $ 1.436 $ 1.384 
87* 72 75 

807 1,508 1,459 

105 105 92 
(2051 U72) (156) 
(175) (174) (174) 

(17) (23) (50) 

515 1,244 1,171 
192 441 479 

S 323 $ 803 $ 692 

$10,139 $ 9.108 $ 8.254 
2,427 2.426 2.364 

12,566 11,534 10,618 
512 506 379 
67 86 109 

$13,145 $12,126 $11,106 

$ 587 $ 583 $ 421 
102 111 163 

$ 689 $ 694 $ 584 

$ 389 $ 374 $ 349 
72 63 52 

$ 461 $ 437 $ 401 

•Operating income in 1989 for the general-merchandise and specialty retail groups was reduced by $598 million and 

$42 million, respectively, due to the K mart restructuring provision and other charges. 

Identifiable assets are those assets of the company associated with a specific business group or 
discontinued operations. Corporate and foreign assets are insignificant. Investments in am late 
retail companies include the company’s investments in Coles Myer and Meldisco. 
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(0) Pension Plans 

46 
K mart Corporation 1989 Ann 

The company and its domestic subsidiaries have noncontributory pension plans coverin > 
employees who meet certain requirements of age, length of service and hours worked K,n)ost 
Benefits paid to retirees are based upon age at retirement, years of credited service ai year 
earnings. K mart Canada Ltd. employees are covered by a defined contribution plan K aVera^e 

The company's policy is to fund at least the minimum amounts required by the Employ p 

ment Income Security Act of 1974. The plans’ assets consist primarily of equity securV ^et're' 
income securities, guaranteed insurance contracts and real estate. The company nn i 'eS' f'Xed 
tribution to its principal pension plan in fiscal 1989, 1988 or 1987. e 110 c°n- 

Pension expense was $54 million for 1989 and $35 million in both 1988 and 1987 The a 
discount rate for the company's primary pension plan was 9.0% for both 1989 and imhk SUT? 

for 1987. Pension expense for 1989 increased primarily due to amendments made to th,’. ? 8'5% 
compliance with certain requirements of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. Pension expense 
mduded a one-time charge of $12 million resulting from terms of an early ret.reS^l 
offered to certain employees in 1987. y l,,tn,ent Program 

Lor the company's principal pension plans, the following tables summary the f,,„a a . 
components of pension cost and actuarial assumptions under FAS No. 87: ^ s atus’ 

(Millions) 

Actuarial value of benefit obligations: 

Estimated present value of vested benefits 

Estimated present value of non-vested benefits 

Accumulated benefit obligation 
Value of future pay increases 

Projected benefit obligation 

Estimated market value of plan assets 

Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net gain 

Accrued pension costs 

January 31, 
i990 

(1,042) 
1,045 

S (97) 

($ Millions) Fiscal 
1 < iVt 1 

Components of p^b^^--- 

Normal service cost 

$ 50 
88 

to™,z,,raindfcfer„lriolbercoiiwiims (100) 

5 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Discount rates 

S 43 

9.0% 
9.5% 
5.0% 

January 25, January 27, 
1989 1988 

» $(597) $(428) 
1 (97) (148) 

1 (694) (576) 
1 (177) (186) 

(871) (762) 
986 897 

115 135 
(144) (152) 

20 _ 

(47) (6) 

$ (56) $ (23) 

Fiscal Fiscal 
1988 1987 

$ 44 $ 44 
72 65 

(126) (40) 
35 (53) 

$ 25 $ 16 

9.0% 8.5% 
9.5% 9.5% 
5.0% 5.0% 

Report 

(p) Empl«yee Savings Plan 

The Employee Savings Plan provides that employees of the mmr«nv .nA. . , ... 
who have attained age 21 and completed one “Year of Servi • " P .y and certain subsidiaries 

earnings in the employees choice of a growth equitv fund a babncXaut vTund ** 1G% °f tfT 
mvestment fund or a K mart common stock Jd. H,r eachd^eTpfiST 

6% of his or her earnings, the company will contribute an additional 50 centswhihki J ? a 
the K mart common stock fund. ts which is invested in 

Company contributions to the K mart common stock fund may be remitted to the Trustee in cash 
or in he form of company common stock. Contributions remitted to the Trustee in cashmavbT 

SptlT^rchaTe C°mm°n **°"°pe" °rfrom company™^ 

As of June 17, 1986. 5.517,750 shares of K mart common stock were made available for issuance 
or sale to the Irustee, consisting of 2.517.750 treasury shares and 3,000.000 authorized but 

unissued shares. As of January 31, 1990, 4.128.062 shares remained available The company's 
expense related to the Employee Savings Plan was $44 million for 1989and $37 million inboth 
1988 and 1987. 
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(Q) Stock Option Flans 

48 

Under the company's 1973 Stock Option Plan, as most recently amended in 1987 ontj 

acquire up to 10,500,000 shares of common stock may be granted to officers and kev !° 
at no less than 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. eniPloyees 

The 1973 Plan also provides for stock appreciation rights (SARs) in tandem with non 

stock options (NQSOs) for officers and eligible directors who are limited under the s •'- 
Exchange Act of 1934 in transactions involving shares of the company's stock Such ^ Ur. 

may request that the Compensation and Incentives Committee perniit the optionee t” °Ptl°nee 
all or part of an exercisable option in return for stock, cash or a combination < ,f |)( )th ° SLjrrender 
appreciation in the value of the surrendered shares over the option price In 1989 any 

ations in the market price of the company's common stock relative to the grant nri • , fluctu' 
credits of approximately $1 million to compensation expense. Compensation ln 

in 1987 was recorded for the excess of the market price of the optkm over the grau pria^ m‘lli0n 

Under the terms of the 1981 Stock Option Plan, options to acquire up to 12 000 oon , 
mon stock may be granted to officers and other kev employees of the conm ^ res of com' 

100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Options under the 1081 Plan nm°^ 

incentive stock options (ISOs) pursuant to Section 422A of the Internal Rerenue^ ^ NQSO 

the date of grant, except that an ISO SSKS ff eXerc,sablt> two years after 

who has a prior ISO outstanding. The two-year limitation H, ‘ f be ex^rused b>'an optionee 
nates due to total and permanent disability or death in tawJy lf emP|oynient termi- 
company or if and to the extent t^ComlLtf^ rn T"* °/> Change of control of the 
in its discretion. Payment upon exercise of an ootion mmh° (romm'ttee may so determine 

ora combination of both. Such shares will be valuedauLir already owned shares 

exercise. SARs do not apply to options under the 1981 £ ^ 3S <*'** *** of 

Pertinent information covering the plans follows: 

Outstanding at beginning of year 
Granted 

Exercised 

Cancelled 

Outstanding at end of year 

Exercisable at end of year 

Available for grant at end of year 

Number 
of Shares 

7,924,142 
1.261,000 
*657,318) 
(326.880) 

*^200344 

4/7063)43 

7/PKU27 

1989 

Option Price 
Per Share 

«_12!87^4l88 
36.75- 40.00 
12.87- 35.96 
13.04- 43.88 

S12.87-S13.88 

$12.87-$43.88 

1988 

Number 
of Shares 

Option Price 
Per Share 

6.871.323 
2,341.800 
(850.781) 
(438,200) 

$12.87-$43.88 
34.31 
12.87- 35.96 
12.87- 43.88 

7.924.142 $12.87-$4 3.88 

3,626,342 $12.87-$35.96 

8,256.731 
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|R> 
Restricted Stock I ten 

The Restricted Stock Plan, which was approved by shareholders in May 1988 authorizes the 

Compensation and Incentives Committee to grant awards to officers and other key emolovees of 
the company, consisting of shares of restricted common stock of the company or an agreement to 
issue stock upon the satisfaction of specified terms and conditions. Restricted shares are held in 

custody by the company until the expiration or termination of the restrictions. If the conditions or 
terms under which an award is granted are not satisfied, the shares are forfeited Compensation 
expense is based on the stock price at the date restricted stock is issued or ending market price 

for those shares subject to other terms and conditions and is accrued over the periods in which an 
employee performs service. 

Under the Restricted Stock Plan, awards for up to 2.000,000 shares of common stock may be 

granted through March 21, 1998. Awards granted under the Restricted Stock Plan in 1989 totaled 
127,249 shares of restricted stock or stock to be issued upon the satisfaction of terms and condi¬ 
tions prescribed by the Compensation and Incentives Committee. As of January 31.1990, 
1,872,751 shares were available for the grant of additional awards. 

(S) Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) 

Each of the quarters includes 13 weeks except for the fourth quarter of 1989 which includes 
14 weeks. 

(Millions, except per-share data) Quarter 

1989 First Second Third Fourth Total 

Gross revenue $6,128 $7,088 $6,782 $9,900 $29,898 

Cost of merchandise sold $4,379 $5,154 $4,932 $7,280 $21,745 

Net income $ 94 $ 145 $ 104 $ (20) $ 323 

Earnings per common and 
common equivalent share $ .47 $ .72 $ .52 $ (.10) $ 1.61 

Net income for the fourth quarter of 1989 includes a net one-time provision of $416 million for 

K mart restructuring and other charges and a net LIFO credit of $10 million compared with a 
fourth quarter 1988 net LIFO charge of $36 million. 

(Millions, except per-share data) Quarter 

1988 First Second Third Fourth Total 

Gross revenue $5,902 $6,763 $6,435 $8,555 $27,655 

Cost of merchandise sold $4,193 $4,887 $4,647 $6,187 $19,914 

Net income $ 121 $ 163 $ 126 $ 393 $ 803 

Earnings per common and 
common equivalent share $ .60 $ .81 $ .63 $ 1.96 $ 4.00 

K mart Corporation 1989 Annual Report 49 



Directors 

Joseph E. Antonini 
Chairman of the Board, 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 

James E Bere 
Chairman of the Board 
of Borg- Warner Corporation 

Willie I). Davis 
President of 
All Pro Broadcasting, Inc. 

Joseph R Flannery 
Chairman of the Board 
and President ofUmroyal 
Holding, Inc. 

David B. Harper 
President of David B. Harper 
Management Co., Inc. 

Ellen R. Marram 
President of Nabisco 
Biscuit Company 

E James McDonald 
Retired President of 
General Motors Corporation 

Richard S. Miller 
Executive Vwe President 

J. Richard Munro 
Co-Chuman of the Board 
of Time Warner Inc. 

Larrv M. Parkin 
Executive Vice President 

Donald S. Perkins 
Retired Chairman 
of the Board of 
Jewel Companies. Inc. 

Gloria M. Shatto 
President of Berry College 

Joseph R. Thomas 
Executive Vice President 

Committees of the Board 

Audit Committee 

Gloria M. Shatto, Chair 
Willie I). Davis 
David B. Harper 
Ellen R. Marram 
E James McDonald 

Compensation and 
Incentives Committee 

Joseph R Flannery, Chair 
K James McDonald 
Donald S. Perkins 
Gloria M. Shatto 

Executive Committee 

Joseph E. Antonini, Chair 
James E Bere 
Joseph P Flannery 
David B. Harper 
Donald S. Perkins 

Finance Committee 

Joseph E. Antonini, Chair 
James F Bere 
Ellen R. Marram 
E James McDonald 
Thomas F Murasky 

Joseph R. Thomas 

•Nominating Committee 

Donald S. Perkins, Chair 
Joseph E. Antonini 
James E Bere 
Willie D. Davis 
Joseph P Flannery 

Public Issues Committee 

David B. Harper, Chair 
Willie D. Davis 
Ellen R. Marram 
Richard S. Miller 
Larry M. Parkin 
Gloria M. Shatto 
Joseph R. Thomas 

50 
mart Coiporation 1989 Annual Report 

Officers (as of2mm 

InseDh E. Antonini, Chairman of the Hoard, 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Executive Vice Presidents 

RichardS. Miller. Kmart Stores 
Larry M. Parkin, Warehouse and Grocery Operations 
Joseph R. Thomas, Chief Administrative Officer 

Senior Vice Presidents 

David M. Carlson. Corporate Information Systems 
Roger E. Davis, General Counsel and Secretary 
Thomas E Murasky, Chief Financial Officer 
Thomas H. Nigolian, Store Planning and 

Interior Design 
Bernard E. Thomas, Corporate Personnel 
William I). Underwood, General Merchandise 
Thomas W. Watkins, Store Operations 

Vice Presidents 

James P Churilla, Treasurer 
Ronald R. Dejaeghere, Community Affairs 
James E. Ford, Eastern Region 
PaulJ. Hueber, Western Region 
Donald W. Keeble, Midwestern Region 
Anthony R. Mauro, Distribution and 

Transportation, K mart Stores 
Robert C. McAllister, Southern Region 
Glen R. Mielke, President of Builders Square, Inc. 
James L. Moser, Merchandise Imaging 
Thomas M. Nielsen, Human Resources and 

Customer Service 
Anthony N. Palizzi, Associate General Counsel 

and Assistant Secretary 
Peter J. Palmer, Labor Relations and 

Assistant General Counsel 
William H. Parker, Sales and Marketing 
Da\id L. Schuvie, Merchandising 
Ja> D. Scussel, Systems Development 

ichael L. Skiles, Corporate Facilities 
lenn B. Smith, President of Kmart Apparel Corp. 

A- Rober t Stevenson, Public Affairs 
John S. Valenti, Southwestern Region 

avid V ine, Executive Resources 
Michael G. Wellman, Marketing 



Corporate Data 
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Kmart Corporation 
3100 West Big Beaver Road 
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(313) 643-1000 
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Makro Inc. 

Cincinnati. Ohio 
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Aurora. Colorado 

Pay LeSS Drug Stores Northwest. Inc 
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